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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRRE

Year ended 31 March
HBE3A31BLEE

0

2022 2021

2022 2021 4F Percentage

(HK$ million) (HKS$ million) Change

(AE®ER) (B8%ET) BoLEH

Revenue & 473.7 530.0 -10.6%

Gross profit EF 76.3 74.8 2.0%

Profit for the year F 35 F 22.1 73.8 -70.1%

Total assets BmEE 264.2 276.5 -4.4%

Total equity Rk 195.4 208.7 -6.4%

Key Financial Ratios FTEHHLE

Gross profit margin ESp | 16.1% 14.1%
Net profit margin 4 71| = 4.7% 13.9%
Return on equity A% 7K [ 3 R 11.3% 35.4%
Return on total assets 424 = B 3R & 8.4% 26.7%
Dividend payout ratio & B L & 40.0% 48.0%
Interest coverage ratio PSR EE RS 228.4 times 1%  376.9 times fZ
Current ratio VEI S 4.1 times & 4.6 times &
Quick ratio R K 4.1 times & 4.6 times &
Gearing ratio ERBEL X 0.02 times & 0.03 times &

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

KIBZREBERDE



On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company” or “Winson”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Winson Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022").

The prolonged outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”)
since early 2020 and persisted through the whole of the FY2022 further
ravaged business environment and lifestyle of the whole society. Despite
some businesses have shortened opening hours or adopted remote
working arrangement, which has temporarily reduced the need for
hygiene services, Winson Group’s hygiene services team remained
committed to deliver its works to full extent where required and offer
additional services to enhance hygiene standard for disease prevention
and control, such as cleaning and sanitising at more frequent intervals,
mist disinfection of business premises and enclosed public area, etc.
throughout the FY2022 and during the pandemic outbreak. Thanks for
the dedication of our management and service delivery team, the Group
is able to maintain a relatively steady operating performance for FY2022
amidst the highly uncertain and unstable business environment.

Given the current harsh and rapidly changing operating environment and
economic conditions, the Group has been taking a combination of
strategic steps to strengthen organic growth and to explore opportunities
for horizontal development.

The Group registered itself as a supplier to a public health service
operator during the FY2022 and subsequently in April 2022 secured a
contract for provision of waste management service to a key district
hospital, which is a testimony for the standard of service that the Group
is able to achieve and the service quality of the Winson brand. The Group
will focus on advancing further in this new customer sector and bid for
contracts for different types of hygiene related services with unwavering
effort. The Group will target for public hygiene projects available in the
governmental and other public service sector, such as Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department, rail and other public transport
operators etc. and enrich its range of service offerings, such as recycling
of kitchen waste, eco-friendly hygiene services, technology-enhanced
hygiene solution services and other premium environmental related
services.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EREWE

Simultaneously, the Group has been exploring horizontal business
development opportunities, including the possible expansion in
geographic coverage and in property related synergised services. To
facilitate horizontal business development plan, the Group entered into a
strategic cooperation framework agreement with Lask JV Facility
Management Services Limited (“Lask”) to make use of each other’s
business network and operational expertise to identify potential business
opportunities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the
“Greater Bay Area”). Lask and its subsidiaries (“Lask Group”) are
principally engage in facility management services for residential,
commercial and office premises, security services and horticulture
services in the People’s Republic of China, which highly synergise with
the Group’s operations in servicing the environmental hygiene needs of
property owners and business operators.

The prolonged COVID-19 outbreak and its severe impacts have strongly
reinforced the importance of public and personal hygiene and it is
expected there will be an increase in both government spending on
general environmental cleanliness and waste management (such as the
municipal solid waste charging scheme and various waste reduction and
recycling initiatives) and demand from private sector, including property
owners and business operators. In addition, long term development plan
announced by the government, including the Northern Metropolis and
Lantau Tomorrow, intended to boost up supply of housing and
commercial properties which will provide ample expansion opportunity
for the environmental hygiene market in general. Furthermore, with the
Group’s established and recurring business relationship with our railway
operator customer, we are in an advantageous position to tender for
business opportunities associated with the various railway network
extension projects. Looking further geographically, the potential strategic
cooperation between the Group and Lask Group will enable us to tap
into such vast market and the Group is ready to explore opportunities in
technologically advanced hygiene and waste management services and
other synergised property related services once travel restrictions in Hong
Kong and vicinity area are relaxed. The long term outlook of the Group
and the market in which we operate remains positive.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EREW|E

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to express my utmost HKAEREXEEZT S EhgemAEEN
gratitude to the Group’s staff members for their dedication to EBIBMUELHE NEBRES T HE
continuously render quality hygiene services amidst the intimidating IREEENFAERSE - R ITE D R K
pandemic outbreak. We are also very thankful for the continuous trust IR P - HEERE LR E —F S I M HR A
and support from our customers, suppliers and shareholders. The EER S - kKIBEBE UM BEFEIES
Winson Group will work its best to continue delivering quality customer S E)FI 25 H 2% - BB HiIEHEE TP R

services and financial results for the interest of all our stakeholders. BREREBEMBGHELE -
Ng Sing Mui TE

Chairperson REEMN

Hong Kong, 20 June 2022 B 202296 A20H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

There had been a general increase in demand for hygiene services from
customers for disease prevention and control, such as more frequent
cleaning, sanitising, mist disinfections etc. since the COVID-19 outbreak,
which partly counteracted the impact of remote working arrangement
and shortening opening hours of commercial and dining venues which
reduced the demand for cleaning and waste management services.
Moreover, the Group noticed that existing and potential customers have
become prudent and more price-conscious with their procurement due
to the adverse impacts of the pandemic and the accompanied economic
uncertainties. In response, the Group exacerbated its business
development effort and submitted bids for over 350 potential new
contracts during the FY2022 and the number and value of new contracts
secured by the Group increased to 22 and HK$38.1 million respectively,
as compared to 15 and HK$27.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2021 (the “Previous Year” or “FY2021”); new projects contracted during
the FY2022 included a prominent 5-star hotel, a notable new shopping
mall and a number of branches of an international bank. On the other
hand, relatively few number of service contracts where due for renewal
during the FY2022 and as a result, despite the contract renewal rate
increased to 74.2% for the FY2022 from 71.4% for the Previous Year,
the value of contracts renewed dropped to HK$210.8 milion as
compared to HK$773.6 million for the Previous Year; it is expected the
value of contract renewal will rebound in the next year when higher
proportion of service contracts become due for renewal. Overall, the
Group’s value of outstanding contract works as at 31 March 2022
declined by approximately 20% from HK$655.5 milion to HK$522.5
million.

The Group’s airline catering support services business has been
temporarily suspended since March 2020 and remained so until present
as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak and travel restrictions which
reduced passenger traffic to negligible level. Accordingly, no revenue was
recorded from this business segment for both FY2022 and the Previous
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For reasons stated above, the Group recorded a decline in revenue of
HK$56.3 million or 10.6% to approximately HK$473.7 milion for the
FY2022, as compared to HK$530.0 milion for the Previous Year.
However, as a result of management’s strategy to promote premium and
specialised services, the gross profit and gross profit margin increased to
HK$76.3 million and 16.1% for FY2022, as compared to HK$74.8 million
and 14.1% for the Previous Year respectively.

Further analysis of the Group’s financial results is set out in the section
“Financial Review” below.

Management considers the slight decline in revenue for the FY2022 is of
temporary nature and attributable to market and economic uncertainties
brought on by the pandemic. To combat the said uncertainties, the
Group is proactively enriching its range of service offerings, such as
recycling of kitchen waste and other environmental related services, with
an aim to broaden and diversify its customer base. Also, the Group
registered itself as a supplier to a public health service operator during
the FY2022 and subsequently in April 2022 has been awarded a contract
for waste management service for a key district hospital, which is a
notable milestone for the Group’s development path at a time of turmoil.
Having achieved a presence in the healthcare service sector, we will
continue our unwavering efforts to secure further projects for various
service offerings in this new customer sector. The prolonged COVID-19
outbreak has instilled strong awareness of and the needs for public
cleanliness; the Group will target for associated opportunities available in
the public sector, such as Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
and other governmental or public service bodies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

At the same time, management has been exploring horizontal business
development opportunities, including the possible expansion in
geographic coverage and in property related synergised services. To
facilitate horizontal business development plan, the Group entered into a
strategic cooperation framework agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with Lask on 1 November 2021 to () make use of each
other’s business network and operational expertise to identify potential
business opportunities in the Greater Bay Area; and (i) give due
consideration to engage each other as business and/or operational
cooperation partner to commence business operations or to enter into
business transactions in the Greater Bay Area. Lask Group is principally
engage in facility management services for residential, commercial and
office premises, security services and horticulture services in the People’s
Republic of China. The modes of cooperation between the parties include
the formation of new joint ventures and to jointly bid for and complete
projects. Further details about the Cooperation Agreement and the
background of Lask Group are set out in the announcement published
by the Company on 1 November 2021. The Group is also keen to explore
new service offerings which synergies with its current environmental
hygiene and related services business, such as pest control, property
security and general property management services, in the Greater Bay
Area.

Looking beyond the near-term uncertainties brought on by the COVID-19
outbreak, the market outlooks remains positive and will mainly be driven
by urban and transportation development plans as announced by the
government, including the Northern Metropolis plan, Lantau Tomorrow,
and various rail network extension projects etc., which will create strong
demand for environmental hygiene and other property related services.
The Group also has the advantage to avall itself to business opportunities
in the Greater Bay Area from its strategic cooperation with Lask Group as
previously mentioned.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue

For the FY2022, total revenue was approximately HK$473.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.6% (FY2021: approximately
HK$530.0 million). The decrease in revenue mainly due to unsuccessful
renewal of a few major contracts.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment:

Environmental hygiene and related 3 3% 27 4= % 48 8 AR 7%
services 473,685
Airline catering support services i 2= & #k & 12 IR 7% =

Total @t 473,685

For the FY2022, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
amounted to approximately HK$473.7 million (FY2021: approximately
HK$530.0 million). The airline catering support services was still plagued
with COVID-19 for FY2022, nil revenue from this segment as same as
Fy2021.

Cost of Services

For the FY2022 and FY2021, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$397.3 million and HK$455.2 million respectively,
representing approximately 83.9% and 85.9% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit slightly increased from approximately HK$74.8 million for
the FY2021 to approximately HK$76.3 million for the FY2022. The overall
gross profit margin increased from approximately 14.1% for the FY2021
to approximately 16.1% for the FY2022. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment:

Environmental hygiene and related I8 3% & 4= & #8748 IR 7%

services 76,349
Airline catering support services  fifi 2= & 8k 37 £ IR 7% =
Total st 76,349

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services slightly
increased by approximately 2.0% from approximately HK$74.8 million for
the FY2021 to HK$76.3 million for the FY2022. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 14.1% for the FY2021 to 16.1% for
FY2022.

The increase of gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services
was mainly due to few major contracts that were not successful in
renewal, these contracts have a relatively higher cost of services and did
not achieve the Company’s average gross profit margin. The loss of
these contracts pulled up the average gross profit and gross profit margin
as a whole. The airline catering support services was still suspended
because of COVID-19 for both FY2021 and FY2022, nil gross profit
contribution from this segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses decreased by approximately 21.4% or
approximately HK$13.9 million, from approximately HK$65.0 million for
the FY2021 to approximately HK$51.1 milion for the FY2022. The
decrease of general operating expenses was mainly attributable to
approximately HK$11.3 million one-off expenses including anti-epidemic
allowance to staff, professional fees and charitable donation was included
in the FY2021.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 50.0% from
approximately HK$0.2 million for the FY2021 to approximately HKS$O.1
million for the FY2022 as the Group required less external financing for
working capital requirement.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for each of the FY2022 and FY2021 were
approximately HK$22.1 milion and HK$73.8 million respectively,
representing of approximately 4.7% and 13.9% of the respective year’s
total revenue. The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the
receipt of subsidies of approximately HK$65.5 million from government
under employment support scheme for FY2021.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2022, the Group’s capital expenditure which mainly
included additions in equipment and motor vehicles amounted to
approximately HK$5.9 million (FY2021: HK$8.8 million). These capital
expenditures were mainly financed by fund generated from operating
activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$226.4 million (31 March 2021:
HK$238.0 million) and HK$55.5 million (31 March 2021: HK$52.1 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 4.1 times (31
March 2021: approximately 4.6 times).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$264.2 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity
of approximately HK$68.9 million and HK$195.4 million respectively. As
at 31 March 2022, the Group had cash and bank balance of
approximately HK$117.2 million (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$121.7 million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.02 times as at 31 March 2022 (31 March
2021: 0.08 times), which was calculated based on the total lease liabilities
and bank borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the year
ended 31 March 2022. As at 31 March 2022, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 1,886 (31 March 2021: 2,077)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts with
each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2022 were approximately HK$293.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 8.6% or approximately HK$27.6 million as compared with
approximately HK$321.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members of
the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
ongoing training regularly to relevant staff across different departments
with topics including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings
for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or
by external parties.

Since the Group generated all of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2022, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group did
not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2022.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$25.2 million as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
approximately HK$26.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmR D

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no capital commitments (31 March
2021: HK$1.5 million) in respect of contracted but not provided for
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2022.

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2022.

The Group did not have any plans for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 March 2022.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERATF

R2022F3A31H  AEETEBBEEEY
¥ BEMRENDITOERBEENER
AYE (2021 F3AB1E - 15FHEBTT) ©

AREBEBREE2022F3A3TBEFET &
HHWNB AR BERARRERAGERRIELE
AU g K & -

R20229F3A31H  AEE T EFSTME
AIRE -

HZE2022F3A31H  AEFEWEMTMEKX
KERERNEES -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 16 March 2017, the Shares were first listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by way of share
offer (the “Share Offer”). Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share,
the net proceeds from the Share Offer, after deducting listing related
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group has
utilised and will continue to utilise such net proceeds from the Share Offer
for the purposes set out in the section headed “Statement of Business
Objectives and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 February 2017 (the “Prospectus”). As at 31 March 2022, the
Group’s planned application and actual utilisation of the net proceeds is

set out below:

Use of proceeds

For strengthening the
Group’s available financial
resources to finance cash
flow mismatch under the
tender contracts

For increasing the market
penetration by strengthen
the promotion of the
Group’s brand

For strengthening the
established position in the
environmental services
industry in Hong Kong

For enhancing the
information technology
system to strengthen
operational efficiency and
service qualities

For the use as general

working capital of the
Group

Total
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REZNHEA
st

fnes & B R 4
NREEENE

RRBER

REAEE—fK
2EES

At

Percentage of
total net
proceeds
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45.0%

7.0%

19.0%

19.0%

10.0%

Planned
applications

Rk
HK$ in million
BEET

18.1

2.8

7.6

7.6

4.0

40.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

As at 31 March 2022, the unutilised net proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$1.1 million, which was intended to be utilised for (i)
enhancing the information technology system to strengthen operational
efficiency and service qualities as to approximately HK$0.9 million; and (i)
increasing the market penetration by strengthen the promotion of the
Group's brand as to approximately HK$0.2 million.

Due to the prolonging COVID-19 pandemic, unprecedented change has
been made to the business environment socially and economically.
Commercial activities and engagements have been cut out due to social
distance restriction. Advertising and event sponsorship has been
substantially reduced/suspended due to budget cut down and the
production line from IT products manufacturer has also been suspended,
resulting in delay in delivery of products. As a result, the Company’s
utilization plan in increasing the market penetration and enhancing the
information technology system has inevitably been delayed. Under this
condition, the Company will be more confident to resume the utilization
plan with appropriate tools and channels for the long run. It is expected
the use of unutilised net proceeds be completed by 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2022, the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1.1 million have been placed as interest bearing deposits with a
licensed bank in Hong Kong and are intended to be applied in a manner
consistent with the proposed allocations in the Prospectus.

There are no significant events after the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance in
management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has
been re-numbered as code provision C.2.1 under the new CG Code that
came into effect on 1 January 2022) as described below, the Board
considers that, the Company has complied, to the extent applicable and
permissible, with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the Directors will use their best
endeavours to procure the Company to comply with the CG Code and
make disclosure of deviation from such code in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities transactions by
Directors. The Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code on a regular
basis. The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWE

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees
are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 43 to 48 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having a
minimum of three independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2022 unless terminated by not less than three months prior
written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has been re-numbered as
code provision C.2.1 under the new CG Code that came into effect on 1
January 2022) requires the responsibilities between the chairperson and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWE

Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer have
been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam Ng Sing
Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and an
executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has the
advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors with
different expertise and will review the current situation from time to time
and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race, age,
gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for the
factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and will
review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and make such
revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing effectiveness.

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board held 6 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2021 annual general meeting held on 10 August
2021 (the “2021 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules and
the CG Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report, interim report and accounts, and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditor. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) or auditor. Members of the
Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2022. The attendance record of each members of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

—  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of perform agree-upon
procedures for the interim results announcement;

—  discussed with the Company’s auditor the audit planning;

— reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and the
related results announcement, documents and other matters or
issues raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation
to the Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

— discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;
and

—  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and corporate governance related
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and is of the opinion that
such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairperson
of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code (which has been re-numbered as
code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) under the new CG Code that came into effect
on 1 January 2022) to make recommendations to the Board on
remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022. The attendance record of each members of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following works:

— discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

— made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment
proposals for the executive Directors and senior management.
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The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chan Chun Sing with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as
well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for
non-executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if
invited,;
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(d)  bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

® ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise for
filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
March 2022 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at
the 2021 AGM. The attendance record of each members of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual
report.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERATF

0 BESLHR— ?W%W&%“M
BoaBhEr2EEEE £ 8
=R ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%é%@&&ﬁ
ZEEXEREREE ER -5EES
ShEBEERNUARZ T

e ERAQNATEERZEILLEFRER
ERTENREREEHEBERRNS
WIFR

H WBREFMERBHNZESETEEZGH

TR R RE &

() L?LE%ATHTJE HARANFEE
S AN BT S 0 B0% Bl 3k _E T AR BT
BRI TR E - R RBRG(a

) e
MEZLZEREARBILINITES A
ARE (K BE) B R RIS 3135 (45t

AT ELEE]) FTE A 2 E H
LM e mE AR IJJTAME;%\“E/\E’JE
B ERREREREBIEL WZERE
ﬂﬁmmﬂ@%%é%jaﬁwfﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%a
BHER (B EMHAE310Q) KR T M8
BEBRIER) N ETBIIENTES -

REZE2022F3A31HILFE IERZLE®
BERTIAEHE eLREZZEBEEKERS
BErg AR BE -AXkZl FE
BWYIERNTEET 2B BB R20214F
BEREAFAG TERRITEETNEETSE
HiEEER RAZEESHEZEH
BREEH RN AFEREITIBEZRIEA -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

Attendance of each Directors at all the Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March

2022 is set out as follows:

mEBRREZBERHINMAT

Audit
Board Committee
Name of Director Meetings Meetings
BExg EXZEES
EspE =f =f
Executive Directors
HITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 6/6 N/A
REBRZT(EE) A iE A
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 6/6 N/A
MEFHE 2+ A3 A
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 6/6 N/A
HEAESE & TER
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 6/6 N/A
MEAE fm 5 A& A5
Independent non-executive Directors
BYkHITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 6/6 3/3
REBEREE
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 6/6 3/3
I8 E A
Mr. Chan Chun Sing (Note 1) 6/6 3/3
PR % 22 5 A (B EE1)
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (Note 2) 2/2 2/2
5 Bl 58 5 A (M EE2)
Mr. Wong Yat Sum (Note 2) 2/2 N/A
|k AE(EE2) A5 A
Notes:
1. Mr. Chan Chun Sing has been appointed as member of the Nomination

Committee with effect from 10 August 2021. No Nomination Committee meeting

was held during his tenure.

2. Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Wong Yat Sum retired as independent non-
executive Directors upon conclusion of the 2021 AGM. Their attendance above
were stated by reference to the number of meetings held during their tenure.
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Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and statutory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Company also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2022 to the Company. Training record of each Director received
for the year ended 31 March 2022 is summarised below:

Name of Director

E=pnE

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) RB/Z LT (FE)

Ms. Sze Tan Nei BE S 8 22

Mr. Ang Ming Wah HERREE A

Mr. Sze Wai Lun FE1E R A&

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIER A&

Mr. Chung Koon Yan EIEE A&

Mr. Chan Chun Sing BRI 2 5t 4

Notes:

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory

changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
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The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2022, by band is set out below:

Remuneration Band

EEERHRE

HE2022F3A31HIEFEE AR SH
EIEE (R IEEST) M H B iz 5 B & E 5
mr

Number of individual

E2 ] AE
Nil = —
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 178 7T £ 1,000,000 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 T & 1,500,000 JT 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 JT & 2,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7t & 2,500,000/ 7T —
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T = 3,000,000% JT -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T = 3,500,000 JT 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% 7T = 4,000,000 7% JT —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T = 4,500,000 JT 1

11

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

ERRERBARRBIIARE

ARABRRAEARRLEEFE ZHN
BBEREHEBE ARAEBFRIT -RAER
BAFERE HWHAEFEET  THRRAKX
B (RRBFRNERIN) ERE SRR 5
RE e

HEEZEREHME-_+-— BN EFE
AEEAFRBAREARE AAREZERORK
RAUBZENREZSIARARERENT R
BRARRENAEG MEEZROBREERE
EEeREAERAEMAEELENMA
XARARAMREELEN-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022F F 3

33



34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWE

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of
association of the Company or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
at Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact information as
provided on the website of the Company.

There has been no change in the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to date version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31

March 2022.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the
long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:

Role

Board

objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks it
is wiling to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives;

oversees management in the design,
implement and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and ensures the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;
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Role Major Responsibilities At FERE

Audit Committee

Management

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover
all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group
annually, and the risk management and the
internal controls in place to address those
risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the
Group to ensure that the management of the
Group has performed its duty to have an
effective system. The discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and
to rectify any weaknesses that may be
revealed from time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to
these findings;

designs, implements and ongoing assesses
the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board, on
Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the
external consultant(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems;
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Role Major Responsibilities

Risk Owners — ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is
managed appropriately; and

— responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged an external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as
follow:

Control — a set of standards, processes and structures
Environment that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment — adynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.

Control Activities — actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out.

Information and — internal and external communication to
Communication provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring — ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of
internal control is present and functioning.
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Process used to Ildentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

|dentification — identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

Evaluation — analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management —  consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including, but not
limited to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee
and the Board which enables them to assess control of the Company
and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance, and considered that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate for the year ended 31
March 2022. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work
with the management to discuss and follow-up on the status of
remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of
the Group in the coming years.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERATF

Wl AAEREEREXRERAME
AERF

B Al - BAARBEBEEA EB
BEENAETERRE
RE R -

BRE] - DWRBREAEMERF
23 48 ' T A R R
ER=g

& Z R R R E YRR R
ExgcERETH
BBB LR EEE R
2 ez

ENEAREERABERRLS

R P T2 B R B A O 2B B 42 B AT

ERNEF

RERFmRERAREEENREEETF

RXTFTERZEGhNEEZE -EFgCE SR

BEZZESHASEMNERE R LA
EmAGNARNMETEN EH8ER
TRAO(EREROMEED RI2E /A EZ
K AN B) JE 8 H E R ROME IR 35 B L /Y B
NoEEEHREEANSNEZE RGN
BERNBEELEZX (INEZRZES

EEOERERER(UERSEMTEA
NEIMESHE R B IR B SUE) B & E K
PEE S (WE BB E REEIEBRBEHTE
FWARBWBRBREFONERIER LT
HAUGHBR WREE E2022F3 H31
ALEFE RREEAATELEZGESR
BERB VEEFFJeerEXAEEHY
HoEE AHEREREBREEBENEKR
FYEE - HEEMNNEERZEERN T
B AEBESH M BERRBES TH
BN ARE SRS B RN EE
MEE EECRTHREELEEERETF
AYE U RBRESTH AP EILIB M
ETHNHERITEORIARERAERDN
[B B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

- access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

- transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

- prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

- code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

- trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the company secretary with effect from 13 June
2016. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze
Tan Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
are set out as follows:

EEERHRE

HZE2022F3A31HIEFE AR R ZE
MESYEEZS:tMEEMARAFIR
HEOBANIEFARG Z2EERIENNDOT ¢

Fee paid/
Services rendered payable
g/
PR 7% 8 Bl ENEH
HK$’000
FAT
Audit services: HEET R
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2022 — EHE2022F3A831HILFE 2 FEE:T 600
Non-audit services: IEEET AR -
— Perform agreed-upon procedures for interim results — LR EIZE N ERITHERF
announcement 80
— Other services — H A AR 75 80
Total “at 760

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022F F 3

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWE

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
76 to 82 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Madam Ng Sing Mui (R E&#) (“Madam Ng”), aged 61, a co-founder of
the Group, has been appointed as a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam
Ng was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is currently acting as the Chairperson. She is also the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee and holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the
Company. Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the strategic planning,
operation planning and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019. She was also awarded a
Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, both
are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (fEfHE) (“Ms. Sze”), aged 42, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Ms.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.
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Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004. She
completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the
Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002
in April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO
9001:2015 QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training
organised by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has also awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course
issued by SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. In August
2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the communications
department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive
Director.
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Mr. Ang Ming Wah (GBAE) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 66, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang was
admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (FE{&f®) (“Mr. Sze”), aged 39, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development
of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Griffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor of
Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known as
Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a
Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data Centre
Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT (Certified
in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity Council
in May 2015. Mr. Sze has been admitted as a member of ISACA
(Information Systems Audit and Control Association) since February
2021.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive
Director.

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (£¥5K) (Chinese alias: =RIFTE), M.H. (‘Mr.
Yuen”) aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 February 2017 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 50 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017.
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Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Li Bao Ge Group
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1869) from January 2020 and resigned with effect
from 1 May 2022, an independent non-executive director of Janco
Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8035) from May 2021 and resigned with effect
from 20 April 2022, a non-executive director and chairman of the board
of directors of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1466) from
February 2018 to October 2019, and an independent non-executive
director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (whose shares were
previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and delisted
on 25 January 2021, stock code: 2010) from January 2019 to January
2021.

Mr. Chung Koon Yan ($£23 &) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 58, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also the
chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November 2000. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2007 and November
2014 respectively. He is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Synergy
Group Holdings International Limited (whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1539) and an
independent non-executive director of Great World Company Holdings
Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 80083). From November 2013 to June 2021, Mr. Chung was an
independent non-executive director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
73 and were admitted to trading on AIM (a market operated by the
London Stock Exchange) in 2005 but which have been cancelled from
trading on AIM since 29 March 2017).
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Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BR#zE) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in the fields of accounting and
auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since March 2013. He is also an associate member
of both the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute since June 2021. Mr. Chan worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his
last position held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1690) from February 2015 to December 2020
and has been the company secretary of such company since January
2018. He was an independent non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise
Holding Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2266) from January 2017 to February 2022. Mr.
Chan served as an executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
October 2019 to December 2020 and served as its company secretary
from October 2019 to May 2021. Mr. Chan joined a private company as
chief financial officer from July 2013 to February 2014 and was appointed
as executive director from March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated
as non-executive director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has also
been a director of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited since
November 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (R ERI) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 60, is the assistant
general manager of the Group (operation). He is primarily responsible for
the overall management of sites operations of the Group. Mr. Leung has
over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene services
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services Company
Limited (currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited), being a
company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene related
services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in February
2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung then joined
Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant operations
manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation
manager in October 2004, where he held such position until he left the
company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February 2007. Mr.
Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004
to June 2007.

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (BRXE) (‘Mr. Chow”), aged 53, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in
September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by
long distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.
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Mr. Chow has over 28 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being a
company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business are
shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the section headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the section headed “Relationships with Key
Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below; and

® details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

An occurrence of a natural disaster, widespread health epidemic or other
outbreaks could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the social and economic
environment worldwide. Quarantine, stay-at-home policy and
transportation restriction imposed by the government may limit the
demand of the airline catering supporting services.

Given that the customers from the airline catering support business only
accounted for a relatively small portion of the Group’s revenue, it is
expected that there will not have a material adverse impact to the
business overall.

Also, the worker has strengthened the environmental sanitation
inspection to ensure the workplace was properly sanitized and to
maintain a high-quality hygiene control in workplace. Thus, the cost of
cleaning instruments may increase, which may impair the Group’s
profitability.

To minimize the impact from the outbreak of COVID-19, various
measures have been implemented. Measures include regular meetings
held to discuss the current situation and potential impact caused by
CQVID-19, and adopt implementation plan if necessary.

The Group has also actively explored the business development
opportunities, and maintained stable business relationship with the
suppliers which allow the Group to purchase the cleaning instruments at
a favourable price.
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Operational Risks

Business operations of the Group are labour-intensive and due to the
locality of its customers, all of the Group’s employees are employed in
Hong Kong. Any shortage in the supply of workers in Hong Kong may
adversely affect the Group’s operations and financial performance, which
may also slow down the Group’s growth.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, the Group has offered
competitive remuneration packages with fringe benefits and extensive
training to retain competent employees and make up for the shortage in
skilled workers.

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from tender contracts and there is
no assurance that the existing contracts may be renewed upon expiry or
new contracts may be awarded to the Group.
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The Group is required to submit new tenders upon expiry of the existing
contracts or to bid for new contracts from time to time. In relation to the
existing service contracts which are about to expire, the time frame for
submitting new tenders for supplying the same services to the customer
is generally three months prior to expiry of the service contract. There is
no assurance that the Group will meet the mandatory tendering
requirements and, in such case, the Group may not be granted the
contract and therefore, the Group’s business operations and financial
results may be adversely affected. To response to the above risk, the
Group has established a relatively broad customer base ranging from
various government departments in Hong Kong and subsidiaries of
multinational companies to tenants of various premises. Besides, the
Group has been putting effort to build positive market reputation and
develop long-term relationship with customers.
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Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage of the Group may not adequately protect it against
certain risks.

Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory pronouncements
from the government by its legal and compliance personnel, the Group is
able to keep itself updated with various regulatory requirements and
complies with local labour laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive
work safety management and supervision system is also established for
enhancing safety performance. In addition, the management will review
the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.

Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 31 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.
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Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness of
occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment is
guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation
on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.
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The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group maintains close collaborations with green groups and
chambers of commerce to promote the concept of sustainable
development. The Group’s determination is marked by the ISO 14001
Environmental Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2021, is set out on page 160 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 83 to 87 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK1.473 cents (2021:
HK5.9 cents) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2022, amounting to
a total of HK$8,838,000. The proposed final dividend is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 2 August 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) and
is expected to be payable on or about Friday, 26 August 2022.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28
July 2022 to Tuesday, 2 August 2022, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27
July 2022.

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 8 August 2022 to Wednesday, 10 August 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 5 August 2022.
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Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85 of this annual report and note
25 to the financial statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$58.1 million.
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The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group. Any declaration and payment as
well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Company’s
constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (retired as independent non-executive Director upon
conclusion of the 2021 AGM)

Mr. Wong Yat Sum (retired as independent non-executive Director upon
conclusion of the 2021 AGM)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Sze Wai Lun, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan shall retire from office
as Directors by rotation at the 2022 AGM. Mr. Sze Wai Lun, Mr. Yuen
Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2022 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and
retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company. Each
of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

Each of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung
Koon Yan, being the Director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM,
does not have service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 43 to 50 of this annual report.
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No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2022 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2022 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2022.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in
force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
26 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
Share Offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

BXRARBERNEKRESTS

BIEME—RER2017F2A21HRBHE
FERZR BXA SR ERES
(TE R MEEMERESE DN ESK
HEEHERER - BRXARESHTER
BB EEENARRBRBAEENTE
MEHEE - XA ERERETE
MEBRFBENERERRMBHRERN T
26 > & 192,000 & X171 E0.427% 7T (B
BipEEEE T 2EEE) ZBRED K2017
F2ABART RO TEZERAEEET
BE -HMAEREEXQFMEEERE
rEE— TR BERE-

BREEAARBEEMBREAIREZE
PRREREITANT

Number of Shares (Note 1)

Bt 8B (1)

Outstanding Exercised Cancelled

Exercise

Lapsed Outstanding Price per

Category of as at 1 April during the during the during the as at 31 Share
participants 2021 year year year March 2022  Option Exercisable Period
#2021 5 #2022 =4
418 RER RER RER 3A31E BRE
SHEERR xTE EBOR B KX xfTfE THEE TS
Director
EZ
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 - - — 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)
R E 64,000 - - - 64,000 0.42/87T 201743A16H 5202763150
(M &E2)
Sub-total 64,000 - - - 64,000
NG 64,000 — — — 64,000
4 Employees in 104,000 - — — 104,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
aggregate (Note 2)
AH4%EEE 104,000 - - - 104,000 04277 201753 A16HE202743A15H
(M zE2)
Sub-total 104,000 — — — 104,000
NEE 104,000 - - — 104,000
Total 168,000 - - - 168,000
@st 168,000 - - - 168,000

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERATF



Notes:

Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:
() 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16

March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share

on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on

acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the

Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up

to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of

grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERATF

1R 15 B B A B 1R 0 (1A E BB AR
BOBRNRBERNESTS2RET
YEmz2EE BERAFERTIES
E )RR BERERLBER(VAR
EERRBIMESRERERMABK
mE:(MRMRERBRERL B
MAEEEXBERIAE A RERM
WU E R (i) B 70 BB AR AR
R A#zmE -

BRHEBRENZNRNEREHEY
BH(ERER)ELRAREM- - B
BABRANEAREMBORIERNE
BRERARA 1B -

REBERERT SR TR BT 2D &
21 7360,000,000 % - 14 7 A 4 ¥ A H3
BT 210% °

BHERLD BB ER12ME A BEAR -
R AR 98 i B i At B sl AN X RME (]
BRESIREM2EERONER
B(BREITE B RITENBBRE)
BOEMETEETERTORN R
BT EBBEETRMNAI% -

EBRARREFSAEEENHR
BERREBEBRES S NERITER
Bt EEEMEIAGSEBRL BN
EEt+F UXABEANR LG
MR e

B AE R 28 Ho017E2 A21 B £ 5t
TEHEN BB EBETHERE
ST EIFTEIR AT AR LIS SCFT IR IR »



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors and 4202243 A31H r EE R AR A T BTHK
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and A B8R AQ G sk HE R BE EZE (EE 5 FH
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within % & Bi & & EXVER) 2 I - HHE K %D
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notifiedto &5 T AR IEEH LB EIEH EXVIEE
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of 7 &84 SB7E M & A& A &) N B 32 B 2 #E 25 =8
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are KB (BIERSERIEZF SN EEN 225
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which & EEFRK B BEBE ZEZIAR) »
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the BB & 5 M B & 1§17 58 352 1§ B & 50 N 5% (6
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model — SZ it Z 2 M A kB IEZESF R 7 3 F 8
Code to be notified to the Company and Stock Exchange, were as #l&@ A QAT MBIz ERSAE T :
follows:

() Long position in the Shares

) REROBNEFR

Name of Director

Capacity/nature of interest

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage

shares held/
interested in

of interest in
the Company

iy ®E

BEHRG . ERLFEREN
E=pnE BB REEMtE HEROHE BRBEI
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor of 432,000,000 72%

a discretionary trust (Note 1)

RIENE XEmEEREL  2EGEEMETLE A (1) 432,000,000 2%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72%
iR TREFEE A HEE2) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72%
I 12 fm 2REFEXEA (H3) 432,000,000 72%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HERE BEHER A (MiE4) 64,000 0.01%
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(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of

associated corporations

() RART BB R A

Number of
Name of associated shares held/ Percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested in of interest
iy ®E
EZW s
ESpE HEEEEE B REME RHEE B
Ng Sing Mui Sze’s Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
REENG e KAZER AR A 7 RS 2EERTE 1 100%
FEEA
Rich Cheer Development  Beneficial owner 1 100%
Limited
N ERER AR BEHEAA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
i MERERER AR PREFAEEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
h 12 MR AR A A EREIXEA 1 100%
Notes: P 5E -

All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting
as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich
Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore
Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and
shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.
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2. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is
deemed and taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4, Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept therein,
or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2022.
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As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest
RERER B HEME

Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

M RERAR A A BEHEAA

R2022F3A31TH U TAL(EERAR

AEETRABRINRAR

AR 1 S A8 B

B fn o A A REE 5 M HIE GO EXVER
F2RFIDBHEXAARREEXLELR
REBSMBAEGHIFEIB6HEFENZ LM

GOk R
RGO WER

Number of
Shares held/
interested in

¥ #E
EEW
g =]

432,000,000
432,000,000

Rich Cheer Development Limited Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

the Sze Family Trust (Note) 432,000,000
EHERBRE QA REEERL  EFRBRRKEELIFEA () 432,000,000

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze’s Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s
Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Other than the experiences of the Directors including other directorships
held in the last three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, which have
been disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
above, the changes in the information of the Directors since the date of
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September
2021 which fall to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
are set out below:

Name of Directors

Espns

Details of Changes

BEFE

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive Director
and the Chairperson
REHLZL WITEFHRIE
B o

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director
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Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,684,024 to
HK$3,757,704 with effect from 1 April 2022.
HE K % 0 3,684,024 7 TLIE £3,757,7047F 0T 0 B 202244 A1H

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$2,951,256 to

HK$3,010,272 with effect from 1 April 2022.

AEXL BITES
R o

Mr. Ang Ming Wah, an executive Director

HEKRFEFHH2,951,256/8 T £3,010,2728 70 ° B2022F4H 1B #E

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,520,832 to

HK$1,551,240 with effect from 1 April 2022.

HPAERLE WTES
HER e

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director

HE AN F 1,520,832 T 18 1,551,240/ 7T © B2022F 4 A1 H #E

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,105,200 to

HK$1,127,304 with effect from 1 April 2022.

BEmELE BITES
R e

HERE$H H1,105,200 118 £1,127,30478 71 * 202254 A1 8 #£
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’'s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (the “Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of all
members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes
and covenants with the Company that during the period that the Deed of
Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its
associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other
than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the case
may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the Group’s existing business activity and any business activities
which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or which
any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time to
time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2022. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentages of () revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:
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HE2022F3A3MBIEFE  ((AEBLTE
BEEEMAKZE LA EBRTEHERKD
BEELARBRANE S LEHTMOT

Approximate percentage
of the Group’s

HEEENBABE ST
Cost of
Revenue Services
W 2= B 7% FX 2%
The largest customer S NS 41.8% -
Five largest customers in aggregate AREF &G 65.1% —
The largest supplier or sub-contractor SAHERS Y B — 10.7%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate T At fEFG sk 5 B 7 & &t - 24.1%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and sub-contractors noted above.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated.

MEEEAREFNEMNETBERAREM
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
are not exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 and has continued to maintain such float
as at the date of this annual report.
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There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2022 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

20 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services is recognised when the services are rendered. We have identified
recognition of revenue as a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and there is an inherent risk
over the recognition of revenue by the management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
followings:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records, to
verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.6, note 5.2
and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had trade receivables amounted to
HK$104,019,000 after loss allowance of expected credit losses (“ECL”)
of HK$153,000.

The loss allowance are based on management’s estimate of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment
history and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. All of which involve a
significant degree of management judgements.

Since the assessment of ECL of trade receivables is a subjective area
which requires the management’s judgement and uses of estimates, and
in view of the significance of the amount to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, we considered this as a key audit matter.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

° evaluating the Group’s policies for estimating the credit loss
allowance with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables’ ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
underlying documentation;

° assessing appropriateness of management’s estimate of credit loss
allowance by examining the information provided by the
management to derive the key parameters and assumptions of the
ECL model adopted by the management, including checking
historical default data, assessing management’s estimated loss
rates and assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
forward-looking information in the ECL allowance; and

° reperforming the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31 March
2022 based on the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 20 June 2022
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Revenue

Cost of services

Gross profit

Other income and gains
General operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share

— Basic

— Diluted

Notes
B 5
g 7
Bl 7% B 7R
ER
EH AU A K U 7
— BB ERE
B & A AR 8
B BT 18 5 A1 i 9
FEMAX 10
FRBINREQXAEEA
EEERZENZEEE
SREF 13
— EK
—#E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

473,685

(397,336)

76,349
1,288

(51,139)
(116)

26,382

(4,286)

22,096

HK3.7 cents
AL

HK3.7 cents
AL

2021
2021 £
HK$’000
FA&TT
529,987

(455,163)

74,824
67,048

(64,988)
(204)

76,680

(2,871)

73,809

HK12.3 cents
AL

HK12.3 cents
AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 March 2022 7202243 431H

2021
20214
Notes HK$’000
B 5E FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NMEKRE 14 37,784 37,798
Prepayments B~ IR 17 — 651
37,784 38,449
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 15 79 182
Trade receivables B 5 EIN A 16 104,019 106,115
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE Re kEA
other receivables FE W gk 1B 17 5,119 7,699
Tax recoverable ] Y [B] 7 18 19 2,346
Cash and cash equivalents e hBESEEY 18 117,213 121,673
226,449 238,015
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B SR FOR 19 16,331 14,430
Accruals, deposits and other payables EEHER ke REM
FEN FRIE 19 33,036 31,684
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 408 455
Bank borrowings RITHE N 21 4,034 5,544
Tax payable FESBLIE 1,660 4
55,469 52,117
Net current assets REEETRE 170,980 185,898
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 208,764 224,347
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 86 —
Provision for long service payments REIRG S BH 22 10,946 13,687
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEFE 23 2,354 1,978
13,386 15,665
Net assets BEE 195,378 208,682
EQUITY EE
Share capital R& A 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves E 25 189,378 202,682
Total equity R 195,378 208,682

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 159 were approved £ 83B EZF150E i v G M mREE R
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2022 and 20224 6 F20 H & = & #t ) N 1% 4 7 2%

are signed on its behalf by: YHTHNEERREE:
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REN i /3 e
Director Director
EBE EBEF

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
84 xezmssaRAD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Share Share
capital premium*

Merger
reserve*

B B4 mE &0 R
HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TAET

At 1 April 2020 M2020F4A1H 6,000 48,177
Profit for the year and total ~ 4F A% | R E R 2

comprehensive income [T
for the year - -

At 31 March 2021 and M20215£3A31H
1 April 2021 k2021F4H1H 6,000 48,177

Final dividend paid (note 12) & 1 & B A% &

(Mi&E12) - -
Profit for the year and total  4F (A 3 #1| &2 £ 14
comprehensive income e L
for the year — —
At 31 March 2022 A202243H31H 6,000 48,177

These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

THETT

20,917

20,917

20,917

Share

option Retained

reserve*

Bk E

profits* Total

il RE BRI et

THETT

30

30

30

HK$'000 HK$'000
TEITL TAETT

59,749 134,873

73,809 73,809

133,668 208,682

(35,400)  (35,400)

22,096 22,096

120,254 195,378

ZERBEBEEGEUBRARAEFEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation

Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables,

net

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits
and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in provision for long
service payments

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax refund/(paid)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments for purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of bank borrowings

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

RETHRIRE

B PIT 15 B¢ A1 )2 7

HE

MBFRX
HEME - BERRE
ZIER

&

B 5 W R R E R B
B ¥R

EEESEDAKERR
FERD

B 5 & MR IR R D
BNRE R REMBER
IR D

B 5 R RIAE S Of 4
EEER R REMEN
HRIEE I CR )
RS & BB

CRl )38 hn

RERBRE
ENHME
BE(BN)PREH

RETHMELEREFH

REEZHHRIRE
BEDE BELEE
BEDE BELEE
Z B FRIR
HEME - BFE RRE
Z P15 3R

REZFHTAREFE

MEETDRERE
BEBITHER
XNHEEREN A Y
XNHEERENFE D
ENKRE

MEETDFAARTFHE

26,382
116

59
6,681

82

33,156
103
2,178

2,580
1,901

1,352

(2,741)

38,529
(89)
73

38,513

(5,266)

(5,266)

(1,510)
(770)
(27)
(35,400)

(37,707)

2021
2021 £
HK$’000
FA&TT
76,680

204

8
5,538

(133)

82,297
97
18,621

20
(307)

(2,311)

1,453

99,770
(145)
(5,805)

93,820

(8,770)
(651)

72

(9,349)

(1,887)
(1,321)
(59)

(3,267)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

RERASEENWRD)/
32 hn ¥ #R

FORERREEEY

FRAETRREEEY

RERBSEEYER
Pkl
Be LRITES

2021

2021 £

HK$’000

FA&TT

(4,460) 81,204
121,673 40,469
117,213 121,673
117,213 121,673
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383

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 34.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the “Sze
Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

KXIEZEBREBERAR(TARF DR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

2.1 Adoption of revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April
2021.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRSs has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

21 WAL ETE B BB IR

20 =i

&2 A
i

AREFEE  AEBECEREAT
JmEsestmAae((E8es
MAg)EmRzEBMBEREE
AlZ{ER] EZ BT EASR
MR20215E4 518 14 2 & [Z 5
BArireaMBHREREBILEZE
B ISR A -

ER G ENFI FREERE-
¥ AR £
EEBFEAR F
B ERESER
ET5 - BERE
REEREIH K
ERUBREE
A1 165 2 (57T

ERHMBREEL 20198 HRFSHA
FE1657 2 1B7] BHSER

ERBBREER  2021F6H30R %
F1657 2 87T #2019 Bk RS

FIREHEEER

RMBBMBEREERZEFT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle'

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
the other new/revised standards will not result in significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

4.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(a)

(b)

(c)

4.1

EREH

REVBHRRECREMAES
EREMBHRE LN  FEEFE
Al(MEEE 2D R2E(T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (i) power over the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (i) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Over the lease term
Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
or 50 years

Over the shorter of
lease term or 5 years

Leasehold land
Buildings situated on leasehold land

Leasehold improvement

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Other properties leased for own use Over the lease term

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

4.4 Leases

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise leases which are short-term
leases. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lesseg;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

Other than the above right-of-use assets, the Group has
leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises its judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.4 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (i)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

4.4 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value
of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the
scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount. With the exception to which
the practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions applies, if the renegotiation results in a decrease
in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the
lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease
with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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4.4

4.5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Leases (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group
accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising
the remaining lease payments as income on a either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
remaining lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

4.6 Financial instruments

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
following is the measurement category into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECL are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL
that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL:
these are ECL that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECL
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised cost, ECL are
based on lifetime ECL except when there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

° it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are past due for a number of years. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

4.8 Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.8 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Service income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

(i) Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial asset that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
asset, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

(i)  Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Income from sales of goods is recognised at point in
time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

4.9 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for initial recognition of assets
and liabilities that are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences are not
arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that affects
neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

410 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.10 Employee benefits (continued)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. Liabilities recognised in
respect of long service payment are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration of
the eligible employees based on the requirement of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is reduced by
entittements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group.

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment; and

° interests in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

411 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

4.13 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

4.15

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

4.16 Related parties

(@

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

4.16 Related

parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

4.17 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
(“HKFRS 8”) are the same as those used in its consolidated
financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

5.1

5.2

Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Impairment of trade receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 for
the trade receivables requires judgement when determining
impairment losses.

The Group’s loss allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on the loss
allowance to be recognised or reversed in future years.
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5.3

5.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Provisions

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting from a
past event, and that amount is reasonably estimate, a
corresponding amount of provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. However, no provision is
recognised for costs that need to be incurred to operate in
the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the
financial information of the Group as a whole as reported under
HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two operating
divisions as follows:

(1)

@

Environmental hygiene and related services

Airline catering support services

5.3

5.4

B

EREEHELERAAREMEMAIAE
BERLBENRZRL  ReHEaE
WEBMGE RS MBRE
REERESE - AN L&
FhOR SRR & P 75 B A O RS RE SR
T

Fri&®
AEEBRBNEBREH - BXE
RSB BN FEREAHE -
BEEBGBRTHEZ XS REAR
RIRABETEMT B W TR - K
SEERHBRINHESE I
Bt EREARBAE - HZF
EENREREERE BN V5
AR MEEEZRSETER
7 TE 8 0 P 1S A LR AE TR IR
i

AARARAATEF(AMEBELERRK
E)ERUHIEEREFHREDN
ERDREBEEEVBREENMER
AEEBRRYBEN AEBEAIR
AT REZE DB -

(1)

@

5

Ko 18 B8 BR 7%

5

i
fi 2= B R SR IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022F F

115



116

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.17. For the
purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax
recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs related to bank
borrowings, income tax expense and certain other income
and expenses incurred by the head office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR Y AE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE202243A31HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEE @
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZ2022F3HA31HILLFE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
REFHLER mZEER
1 BA AR %% X ER& ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FET
Revenue g
Sales to external customers NI E P E 473,685 - 473,685
Segment results DEBEE 38,247 - 38,247
Directors’ emoluments EEZHE (11,278)
Finance costs Bl & pk AR (89)
Unallocated corporate income &% Bt 2 &l ¢ A
and expenses, net A% - %58 (498)
Profit before income tax B TS 7 A0 & A 26,382
Income tax expense FEHRAX (4,286)
Profit for the year F Atk A 22,096
Segment assets DEEE 147,001 = 147,001
Tax recoverable A] Ug B 7 18 19
Cash and cash equivalents B REBELZEY 117,213
Total assets mEAE 264,233
Segment liabilities NEAGE 63,161 - 63,161
Bank borrowings H|ITER 4,034
Tax payable FERTHIIE 1,660
Total liabilities BiERE 68,855

Other segment information HttoHER
Depreciation e (6,681) - (6,681)
Additions to non-current assets  FE i £ & E 1 N 6,726 - 6,726
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BZ2021F3A31BLLFE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
REGER = E R
1B AR 7S SRR @Et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FATT FAET
Revenue g
Sales to external customers HINHE P iHE 529,987 — 529,987
Segment results DEEE 91,448 - 91,448
Directors’ emoluments EE (11,397)
Finance costs Bl & Bk AR (149)
Unallocated corporate income %k % Bt 2 B A
and expenses, net LY FRE (3,226)
Profit before income tax & T 15 F4 Bl o 7] 76,680
Income tax expense Frg#iFx (2,871)
Profit for the year F R 5 F) 73,809
Segment assets DEBEE 151,928 517 152,445
Tax recoverable a] 4 B i I8 2,346
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBES2EEY 121,673
Total assets WA E 276,464
Segment liabilities DEEE 62,234 — 62,234
Bank borrowings RITE N 5,644
Tax payable FE IR 4
Total liabilities =RERGEE 67,782

Other segment information Hth 75 & E R
Depreciation e (5,538) — (5,538)
Additions to non-current assets  J3E 7 &) & B 12 N 8,770 — 8,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose of
segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, being the single geographical
region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

EPAMEL)
EFB(ME2)

Customer A (note 1)
Customer B (note 2)

Notes:

(1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue from this customer was less
than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

ARARAABEREERAR  AEEEXE
KEMBUREE RBRERTEYH
WMEERFESRETOBERFEM
ECEAHEAARASBE MM AE
B & £2022F M2021 3 H318 I+ 5
EWmMBRERIERBEEDREE
—HEBFE -

B P I AL E DA BT IR 0 AR 75 b 4k A5 4K
B AKEXRABIBEFLMAAE Bat
BIRNEE

BHME R EBUKREF10%HIA LB EF
W E sl T

2021
2021 4F
HK$’000
FAET

197,937 218,852
57,885 N/A
& H

(1)  HAEHZE2022F k202143H31HIEF
EREREHEREARBENES

@ HEHZE2022F3A31BILFENIRE
FERBHERBHES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene and W %5 36 HR 4 3R 3R AT A K AR A AR 7% P EE
related services rendered. ERRA o
(a) The Group’s revenue recognised within the scope of HKFRS @ ANEEBREFBHEHREEDES
15 are as follows: REEBANER 2 WEOT ¢
2021
20214
HK$’000
F&T
Revenue: W &=
Environmental hygiene IRREAERAB RS
and related services 473,685 529,987
For the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue of B E2022F3A31B L FE ' %
HK$473,685,000 was recognised over time (2021: BF fE R #E 32 UL A 473,685,000
HK$506,010,000 was recognised over time and T (20214 : B EE R R EZ U A
HK$23,977,000 was recognised at point in time). 508,010,000 T M 3% b5 ] Bh i 32

23,977,000/ JT) °

(b) As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the aggregated amount of (o) 20224 K2021F3H31H &
the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RERNEEREGESNBETNRTE
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows: NETHNZTHELTBHOT -

2021

2021 4

HK$’000

FETT

Expected to be recognised within one year 8 Hi — F N 1 32 322,965 355,112
Expected to be recognised after one year FEHARN —FE 4R 199,485 300,348
522,450 655,460
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

Other income and gains: g A R U e -
Sales of scrap materials BE R} &
Reversal of impairment loss of trade g 5 WA R E
receivables, net EiEE D - F
Government subsidies (note) B 48 B (B 3E)
Rental income e WA

Note:

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the amounts represented subsidies
to the Group for phasing out certain diesel motor vehicles of HK$830,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the amounts represented the
subsidies granted by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, which include () Employment Support Scheme of
HK$65,501,000 in which the Group had to commit to spend these grants
on payroll expenses, and not reduce employee head count below
prescribed levels for a specified period of time; and (i) Subsidy for
Transport Trades of HK$340,000. The remaining of HK$750,000
represented subsidies to the Group for phasing out certain diesel motor
vehicles.

The Group does not have other unfulfiled obligations relating to these
subsidies.

)

AREBRFEFRNBERNEMKRAR
W T

2021
20214

HK$’000

FH&TT

373 242
82 133
830 66,591
3 82
1,288 67,048

B

H E2022F3A3MBIEFE Z& 8
EHAEBBEAE TEBRENMHM
830,000/% JT °

HE2021E3A3BIFEE  BHLE
TR EARELFEFBERTHRER
FRBEREESETNE OB -
H B $E ()R 5t 2 51 8 965,501,000 74
T AEBEEAEEZSHPRELAR
MY BEREETHRATEHES A
BB ZE R EABAT » R()EH ¥R
B)) # 340,000 7T © A £ 750,000/% 7T Ty
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMERAK
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#& T FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RATEAKFE 89 145
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 27 59
116 204
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FREFS %A R
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after FRNBHAEHATENTIEINBRS
charging/(crediting): (Bt A«
2022 2021
2022 4 20214
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THE T FH&T
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
— audit services — F: R 600 600
— non-audit services — EFERS 160 170
760 770
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses HRAERIHMEFEERE 12,863 14,920
Depreciation e 6,681 5,538
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMEAREZ
equipment 18 59 8
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B REWHRIEREEEZ
receivables, net Mmoo R (82) (133)
Short-term lease expenses HEAERX 354 335
Employee costs (including directors’ EERRN(BIEESEHE) !
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —T% %4 KkaEay 282,228 309,024
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIKET B/ R 11,508 12,292
293,736 321,316
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two- EBFE L MNE W& ST 7
tiered profits tax rate regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable B-PMEFE AEBLEERER
profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and the 2,000,000 7T FE 3% Bt & F $28.25%
assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% for 2 B R g AN IR - T R 82,000,000 %
both years. The assessable profits of other subsidiaries in Hong TT B FE FR B i M 32 16.5% 2 B 2R 8 4
Kong are taxed at 16.5%. BIE - A0 F BB K B R A& ER

M348 )42 16.5% KO Bt R B B IR

2021

20214

HK$’'000

FAT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BEATEIE — BEANER 3,850 1,943

Current tax — under-provision in prior years BNEfFEIE — BT FE

T~ 2 60 44

Deferred taxation (note 23) IR E IR (MY 5E23) 376 884
4,286 2,871

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit FERBAYEEREERABRERAFEN St
at applicable tax rate: i AR

2021

20214

HK$’000

FAT

Profit before income tax b BT 15 74 B & A 26,382 76,680
Tax at applicable tax rates 2 i A A R 4,188 12,487

Tax effect of non-taxable income 5 7H R T U B F T B & (603) (11,009
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Ao HBEST ARG E 671 1,379
Under-provision in prior years BTFEBBETR 60 44

Tax concession MBEE® (30) (30)
Income tax expense FT1S R 2 4,286 2,871
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEE £
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and  Discretionary scheme
Fees other benefits bonus contributions Total
¥ BHER
ne Hing BEBRA  BAFEHSR G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TAET FAEL THET FAET
Year ended 31 March 2022  #,£2022&3 831 AL EE
Executive directors: HITES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui RERTL - 3,684 307 184 4,175
Ms. Sze Tan Nei iRag A - 2,951 246 148 3,345
Mr. Ang Ming Wah AR - 1,521 127 3 1,651
Mr. Sze Wai Lun mERELE - 1,105 92 18 1,215
Independent non-executive B FHTES:
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen & 58 % 5t 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEAKE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung' BEBELE 86 - - - 86
Mr. Wong Yat Sum' E-0EE 86 - - - 86
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 3 e 240 - — - 240
Total B 892 9,261 772 353 11,278
Year ended 31 March 2021  EZE2021£3A3 AL EE
Executive directors: HITES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui SEiELL - 3,612 300 181 4,003
Ms. Sze Tan Nei kg A S - 2,893 241 145 3,279
Mr. Ang Ming Wah B A - 1,491 124 18 1,633
Mr. Sze Wai Lun EERELE - 1,084 90 18 1,192
Independent non-executive B FHTES:
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen = % i 4t A& 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEALE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung SEEEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum BEoLEAE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BRIRE T 240 - - - 240
Total A 1,200 9,080 755 362 11,397
! Retired with effect from 10 August 2021 1 B20214E8 10 # R

HE2022F3A31B I FE - #
8 F R E T B & (2021 4F ¢
) o

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR Y AE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE202243A31HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2021: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2021: one) individual was
as follows:

MEERNSRAEEEBEMNE @

(b) EfUGEEFHFAL

AEEBANTSME ALH
PUfz (20214 - WUfiz) B R R E
£ HBl e H R EXHE11() -
BT (2021%F : —h1) AL H
B a0

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$’000 HK$ 000

TET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits He Mt REMER 759 699
Discretionary bonus BIE FEAT 63 62
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 18 18
840 779

The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid
individual was within the following emolument band:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T & 1,000,000

BT

ENFEXFESEHESHFATH
FHARTI B & E :
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE A

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

H E20224F k2021938318 1t
FE -AKBEVERAQAANE
EFRhfumEsHEEREMN—fL
S EREMAMAR
SERNRESIEABRBE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument band:

MEERNSRAEEEMNE @

(c) EREEEMN=

FRAENTAEBEGREERE
(EXHE @M KRENERR
SN FEN T TR L E

12. DIVIDENDS

2022 2021
20224 20214
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N ANE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 % 7t & 1,000,000
BT 2 2
1 2- Hﬁ 1%\
(@ Dividends attributable to the year: @ AFEREMERE:
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Final dividend proposed of HK1.473 cents &% & I & 38 A% &k HA A% B
(2021: HK5.9 cents) per ordinary share 147378l (20214 : 5.9
LD 8,838 35,400

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date for the
year ended 31 March 2022 is subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has
not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2022.

RBE2022F3A31MAILEFEZ
WEABRREZIRN 2 KRHRE
AEREERRBFEFRE L&
BRUERTEEE BXER

20223 A31HERAAEE -

()  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved b) BEFHRFEERGERSE  BAFE
and paid during the year: E A RORFT -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$000
FHE T FHET
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year i@ 1 £E J& JE {5 5k 23 A% 5.
— HK5.9 cents (2021: nil) per — BRE BRSS9
ordinary share (20214 : 48) 35,400 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective years.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on
the following information:

SRAFDRENEBEEARDE
B A BEAE 2 TR BB 1T B AR 0 00
FIBEE -

SREAREEENIREUTER
e

2021
20214
HK$’000
FAET
Earnings B R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KRABEA A EAG G F 22,096 73,809
2021
20214
‘000
T i
Number of shares B3 8B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Lt & & R E KN & F 5
for the purpose of basic earnings per share @A INRE g 600,000 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EB#EE HZTERSE:
— Share options — WA 8 6
Weighted average number of ordinary shares gt 5+ & & i% 1 58 2 7 &9
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share & 3@ A% AN 7 19 & 600,008 600,006

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2022 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$22,096,000 (2021: HK$73,809,000)
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
600,000,000 (2021: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended
31 March 2022.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
ordinary shares.

H E2022F3A83MBIEFEMNER
EXBMDBDBEAQEE AEMN
£ A H F)22,096,00078 T (2021 4F ¢
73,809,000 7T ) M & 20224 3 A 31
BIEFEERTEABRM MNEFSE
600,000,000 A% (2021 4 : 600,000,000

BOE -

H E2022F N2021F3HA31B IEFE
2R ERMNIRBREMEHEL R
fREERE  REEITE R IMNEF
HEELRAEFESE -
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Cost

At 1 April 2020
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Additions

Disposals

Written off

At 31 March 2022

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 April 2020

Provided for the year

Written back on
disposals

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Provided for the year

Written back on
disposals

Written back on written

off

At 31 March 2022

Net book value
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

B
P2020%64 A1H
nE

&

2021F3A31H K
202147108

RE

&

k|

M2022%43A31H

RitHE
20204 A1H

FREE
REERED

R2021F3A31 AR
202144 A1R

FREE

A B

RER AT

R20226 3 A31H

REEE
7202243 A31H

R2021F3A31H

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

Leasehold Leasehold

improvement

HEXE
HK$'000
TET

3,011

3,011
432

(1,041)

2,402

3,011

3,011
119

(1,041)

2,089

313

land
HELH

HK$'000
TEL

21,780

21,780

21,780

4,657
628

5,285
628

5,913

15,867

16,495

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

Buildings
BT

HK$'000
TET

12,792

12,792

12,792

2,736
369

3,105
369

3,474

9,318

9,687

Office
furniture
and
equipment
BAKE
e
HK$'000
TET

3,159
2,114
(560)

4713
780
(62

5,441

2,102
330

(485)

1,947
601

(26)

2,622

2,919

2,766

Machinery
and
equipment
BERRE

HK$'000
TRET

10,830
883
(738)

10,975
728
677)

11,026

8,244
1,320

(733)

8,831
1,219

(644)

9,406

1,620

2,144

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK$'000
TEL

13,249
5,773
(969)

18,053
3,977
(1,980)

20,050

11,235
1,684

(969)

11,950
2,872

(1,980)

12,842

7,208

6,103

Other
properties
leased for

own use
Httg A
HENE
HK$'000

TET

2,413

2,413
809

(2,413)

809

603
1,207

1,810
873

2413

270

539

603

Total
G
HK$'000
FET

67,234
8,770
(2,267)

73,737
6,726
(2,709)
(3,454)

74,300

32,588
5,638

(2,187)

35,939
6,681

(2,650)

(3,454)

36,516

37,784

37,798



Notes:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the leasehold land and buildings are
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 21).

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

Leasehold land held FEERANEE L
for own use
Other properties leased for own use HEthERAEmE

The followings are the expenses in relation to leases recognised in profit
or loss:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class

of underlying asset: BENHTEER :
— leasehold land held for own use — HEEAMMEAELH
— other properties leased for own use —EMmEREEYE

Interest on lease liabilities (note 8)

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Aggregate undiscounted commitments for
short-term leases

SHEE H

During the year ended 31 March 2022, additions to right-of-use assets
were HK$809,000 (2021: nil). The additions are non-cash transaction.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$1,151,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$1,715,000). Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out on note 20.

HEaENES (MiEe)

1R A =R B 0 0

I E R R BB AR

R2022F &2021F3A31H & £
MEEFEERFEARNEBRITER
RAEEER ZIRITRE 2 ER (KT
21) °

EREEE

REREERNE T NEREEED
REDFEDFTAT :

2021
20214
HK$'000
FHET

15,867
539

16,495
603

HEBGTHEANEESHEMN L
wmr

2021
20214

HK$’000

FHET

628 628
873 1,207
27 59
354 335
133 127

HE202243A31BILEE  FHESE
E N B 4 58 5809,000/ JT (2021 4 :
B) ZERBEBEBEERS -

B E2022F3A31IBEFE A &£ E
EZRS R LB A1,151,00074 T
(20214 : 1,715,000/ 7T) - BEATHE SR
BB BB E R E20 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

15. INVENTORIES

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Consumables, at cost SEFE SR (R A AS) 79 182
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. E 5 EEWFE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B EWREIE MK EE
i) 104,019 106,115

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both

years.

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from O to 60
days (2021: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in note 31(b).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

5HE -

RREFE  BZRUKEHAET

Eo5RURENEZENEHEBRRN
# N FOXR Z60X (20214 : 0K =60
X)) BRAAEBEERREIE ZER

REFELEERRZE-—FFHFH

Rt EE31(0) ©

LN

BERSHR ERXBEZAHRAK
EEBENE S RUREREK DN

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

TE T FHT

Within one month —R@AR 40,849 44,185
One to three months —Z=={8A 52,684 46,936
More than three months @A 10,486 14,994
104,019 106,115

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR Y AE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE202243A31HILFE

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. B RERHEME

RECEIVABLES W S IE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Non-current: FERE -
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant BEVE BMELEREZ
and equipment TE S FRIR = 651
Current: RE
Prepayments for consumables HFE @B TEN RIAE 94 140
Other prepayments H b FE S 3B 4,568 5,516
Deposits bigera 451 710
Other receivables H fth pE W B 6 1,333
5,119 7,699
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. REeRAEEEY
As at 31 March 2022, all bank balances are deposited in Hong M2022%E3A31H  FTEHRITHREY
Kong banks and carried interest rate at 0.001% (2021: 0.001%) per THREBRERIT EFXA50001%
annum. (20214 : 0.001%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. EG R H MBS RIE
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade payables (note (a)) B S EMNFE(ME@E) 16,331 14,430
Accrued staff costs fEst B TRk A 26,626 25,979
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) H b fE &R 2 (B 5E (b)) 5,388 4,514
Other payables H fth & 5 5/ IE 460 623
Deposits by 562 568
33,036 31,684
Notes: Bt -
(@) Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. (@) RMEFE E5ENRBEHUET
FIREIS
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the BERSHR ERBEZAANESE
end of the reporting period is as follows: NERERESTAOT -
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Within one month —@AR 10,032 9,099
One to three months —Z=={@A 4,328 4,749
More than three months =AM E 1,971 582
16,331 14,430
()  As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, other accrued expenses mainly (b) 20224 k202143 A31H - H b 7T
represented the accrued untaken paid leave to employees. AT EHEEERTAZATH /BB -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR Y AE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE202243A31HILFE

20. LEASE LIABILITIES 20. HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRIWRANEFBRERZ2HEAES
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year: TEARNHEIE R -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BREHEE BREHEE =EEE HEHEE
(NE NREE 3 NFIRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THE T FHExT FET FET
Not later than one year TER—F 423 408 460 455
Later than one year and —FEBTERME
not later than two years 87 86 — —
510 494 460 455
Less: future interest W AR R R BB S
expenses (16) — 5) —
Present value of lease HEBEHRE
liabilities 494 494 455 455
Analysis as reporting MEREMDTA
purpose as:
Current liabilities mEAE 408 455
Non-current liabilities IERHAEG 86 —
494 455
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

2021
2021 4
HK$'000
FAT
Bank loans IRITE 4,034 5,544
All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 K £ B FR2022F K 2021F3 A31 H /Y
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire FIBRITEREEREREBEKRT
bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current HMAEFENEIBETEREHD
liabilities. DERRBEE-
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of ENAREENMBRR ARRIES
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise R RITFAARATEBBEEZRZAE
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the K RRREZERA RITEZHER
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in BERMBEZENE KRB HE
accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan B NRMMIZEAS A ERBTNETT
agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in accordance with the BRI
contractual repayment terms are summarised in the table below:
2021
2021 4
HK$’000
FAET
Analysed based on scheduled repayment BEEFRBEABNTE
terms set out in the loan agreements, into: B FXEETH DT :
Within one year —F R 1,538 1,498
In the second year F_F 1,578 1,637
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF(BIEERE
) 918 2,509
4,034 5,544
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Notes:

(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
March 2022, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates at 1.98%
(2021: 1.84%) per annum.

(i) As at 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings were secured by the
properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$25,185,000 (2021: HK$26,182,000).

o

Liabilities for employee benefit comprise: EERBMNEBERE:

Ho!

\
’

Long service payments accrual, classified as ~ RHIRE S ETE A -

non-current liabilities DEEIETSEE

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

(i

A RITE R ABITENE - 12022F3
A318  RITERFHNFHANERAS
#1.98[E (20214 : 1.84[E) °

R2022F3A31H  RITEBEHAAEE
BT 5 BR M % (B #4925,185,00078 7t (2021
4 1 26,182,000/ T) Z W E (EHE I -

2021
20214
HK$’000
FAT

10,946 13,687

REZERBGY AEEAEST
BATHERLIEAEAAEETKE
PRAFERBHETRERESIN —FXK
He AXNZHBRBBARTFZERE
MREHFEERGFH  LHBIZEA
SEENRFTEBAKEHAMRED
FER - AEELEFEREMEEIN
REFRBKTRERHES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements RAEELBEEECHRELERIB
during the current and prior year are as follows: BEEREHZFBOT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MEBIEFE
HK$’'000
FHET
As at 1 April 2020 R2020F 4 A1H 1,094
Charged for the year (note 10) FAEA (HFFE10) 884
As at 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021 2021 F3 A31H X R2021F4 A1H 1,978
Charged for the year (note 10) F A (M 5E10) 376
As at 31 March 2022 7R20229F 3 H31H 2,354
Number of
shares HK$’000
B EE FET
Authorised: ETE
Shares of HK$0.01 each FREEC.01E TR M
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, 7R2020F 4 A18 -
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 2021%3A318 »
2021%F4A1H &
202243 H31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZETREE -
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, M2020F4 A1 8
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 20214 3H318 -
2021%F4A1H &
202243 A31H 600,000,000 6,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
group reorganisation and represented the difference between
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then
acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible
participants over the vesting period.

rEE

A B B E2022F K2021F3H31H
FFEZREEDFBR2INNESE
JERAEEREHRN - RERHE K
FREHMAT :

@ ARBZEMNEEREZETER
P BT WOER 2 P 1S SRR R R A )
BERITRODEENLD -

b AEBEAHREEDITAEEEHE
Ao HESEEHABR N RER
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Company

At 1 April 2020 R20206481H

Profit for the year and  4F 3 Fll &2 FF (R &
total comprehensive [ i 5 48 58
income for the year

At 31 March 2021 202163 A 318
and 1 April 2021 K202154H1H

Final dividend paid AN RERR R

Profit for the year and  4F W% | R £ R 2
total comprehensive  [E Y %5 48 X8
income for the year

At 31 March 2022 720223831 H

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

Share
premium
&5 E
HK$’000
FHETT

48,177

48,177

48,177

QT
Share
Merger option
reserve reserve

SOtRE BREME
HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT TET

(10) 30
(10) 30
(10) 30

Retained
profits
B8 3 7
HK$’000
FET

373

35,061

35,434

(35,400)

9,830

9,864

Total
BEr
HK$'000
FAT

48,570

35,061

83,631

(35,400)

9,830

58,061



(i)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share option may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 28 February 2017, the Company has authorised to grant
to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. On
the same date, the Company has granted share options to 6
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000
shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

(i)

NHBRENERE

nll’m}l:
Bl S5

R2017F2821H @ &N Q &M —
PEREER—TEEREE((H X
AHAEEERESE] - BX
AHBERNERESE A —ER
HERBFE ERITIEEHY
AARBBAEEETERS R
BE -

EREEXAFAEEaERERT
B EERERETEmMT
BITHRMEEB LR A192,000
f% - WiRIE X ARESAER
RERT 895 T BB AR 2 8 28 BN AR TR
BRI ER D E B -

BERSEEREASEEMAK
BRAZEME2BIFBES N
RAEDBZEARITES -

ERERARERBRERSARE
BRARAARRRBZMIBTHES
RE-

R20178E2A23H » AR A B &
AR B R A% E R B
e meBAERSHEER T A
R A £192,0000% % 5 o R H
B ARRMAEABIKSHEE
B AT R A ££192,0000% B 15
O BB AR A o

MERAREBESAERESSE
TREZTAEEEREZ KRG
RBEREREETR042B T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the date falling on the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of further
effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

(i)
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR Y AE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE202243A31HILFE

The following tables disclose details of movements of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Year ended 31 March 2022

26. iE IR EST 8 @)
(i) BX BIRERERE

&8l o)

TREERBERRAMEEA
BREGAERLZBRERZS

EACHE

BE2022F3A31HIEFE

Number of share options

BRERE
Share At Granted Exercised Lapsed At
option 1 April during during during 31 March
type 2021 theyear theyear the year 2022
BRE MN2021F 12022
LRl 481 FREY FRITE FREA® 3HS31H
Director 2=
Ang Ming Wah  JtREZE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
£t
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
EH#t
Employees B8
In aggregate A&t Tranche 1 52,000 - - - 52,000
£t
Tranche 2 52,000 - - — 52,000
EH#t
Total st 168,000 - - - 168,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Director 2=
Ang Ming Wah B &

Employees EE
In aggregate &t
Total ot

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZREBERD A

Share
option
type

HE R
A

Tranche 1
£
Tranche 2
g8

Tranche 1
F—#
Tranche 2
£-#

At
1 April
2020

R 20204
481H

32,000

32,000

52,000

52,000

168,000

i) BEXAHBENBRE

Number of share options

B EE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
during during during 31 March
the year the year the year 2021

R2021 4
FRFELE FRIFE FREXW® 3A31H

— — — 32,000

— — — 32,000

— — — 52,000

— — — 52,000

— — — 168,000



(i

(ii)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)

Details of the outstanding share options granted under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Share option type Date of grant

BRERR wEAH
Tranche 1 23 February 2017
E—Ht 201742 A23H
Tranche 2 23 February 2017
B it 201742 A23H

All the 168,000 (2021: 168,000) outstanding share options

are exercisable as at 31 March 2022,

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2022 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2021: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.96

years (2021: 5.96 years).

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote

the success of the business of the Group.

Exercisable period

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

BEXAAHBENBRE
")
RN
BI1E 2 i R 1T 08 0B AR M B 1B
-

Exercise price

TEHE THEE
16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
20173 16 H £2027 63 A15H 0427 7T
16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
201843 H16 H £202743 A156H 0.42/8 7T

W 2022 43 A31H 168,000 {5
(20214 : 168,0001% ) 14 & 17
BRI FITE -

MR2022%F3A31H M AITHE 2B
BRI FIIITEE B0.42E T
(20214 : 04278 L) HEn#EF
R # & 4 F B B 4.964F (2021
£ 5964) °

(e e

MR2017E2 8218 B H—RK
RN —EER T2 ([
&) -

BREGES S ERIIABRERE
FWAE MAKESERSHE
ERPEBEINERANESHAEE
EBRIEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Company’s board of
director (the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent
non-executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from
time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

(ii)

iE PR RE ST 8l )

B R A B AR AR IR BE AR R At &
K 7R X B fE ) H B8 AR A 5t &l
BFRENMEEREETER
AT BTG EE LR (Bt
5 AABEEE R D EREER
5T &1 sk AR R B fa] E 4th BE AR A
FFEMERRE KR BT
MABITHRD) aRTERB
PR ETBHE2HBEITRMDL
10% o At - BB A 2 7] 7] 1R 3%
BREFSmM2EERE SR &
= # 60,000,000 i% i% 17 (2% & 1 B
¥ 4l sk & fF 5260,000,000 i% f% 15
MESRBRDEE)ERE-

b X Rt 59 10% L BR AT BE B A AR
REBRAS LHERER B
HR iz B A A 8] R A R B EAA
H Al B B R T 81K th By 2 BRRE A
REETTE M A] AE 1T MY AR 1D 48
BT EBEBLELENLRE
HEHTHRMMWI0% tELKE
#10% £ R & - 58 A AR 3% 8 A2
ot 8 Ko AR 2 BE A E At B8 B R T
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RERT 8 N AN & B ] H h 8 B
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BEWMON AREBEBRESE R
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s ARITENE B R EETE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;ZE202243H31H [LF[E

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any
of their respective close associates) must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or any
of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been
granted since its adoption.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for certain employees,
the assets of which are held separately from those of the Group in
trustee-administered funds independently. The Group contributes 5%
on the employee’s monthly salary to the ORSO Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF
Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rule of the respective
schemes.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contributions as stated above and there is
no forfeited contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which were available to reduce
contributions payable.

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) offsetting mechanism was
passed in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. After the bill takes effect, the Group can no
longer offset employees’ long-service payments against the MPF
derived from the employers’ mandatory and voluntary contributions.
The offsetting mechanism will be cancelled starting from 2025. The
details is yet to be announced by the government and the
estimated financial effect cannot be made at the date of this report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

28. COMMITMENTS 28. A&
() Operating lease commitments (i) REHEHRE
The minimum lease payments receivable under non- BEAEIFN I RESCEHE
cancellable operating lease of the Group were as follows: ZEWSZEREZRENLT -
2022 2021
2022F 2021 4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FET
The Group as lessor AEBEREHEA
Within one year —F R = 7
Lease are negotiated for term of 1 year. HEWE R —F -
(ii) Capital commitments (i) EAXEIE
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T FAT
Contracted but not provided for: DRI 4B R B -
Purchase of property, plant BEME BWERF
and equipment = 1,520
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BERFRS
()  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial () BEEVBRREMITDTHEE
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction E N B B 2022F 20213 A
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2022 and SIBLFE AEERMEHEME
2021. RBEFRS °
(i)  The remunerations of key management personnel, which are iy AFE ZBEBEAARANAE
the directors of the Company during the year, were as follows: EHEZ2HEMY 0T
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE R FAET
Short-term employee benefits HHEEREF 10,925 11,035
Retirement scheme contributions ROKET B X 353 362

11,278 11,397

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders.

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position as capital.

Lease liabilities HEBE
Bank borrowings RITIE
Total debt wmafE

Total equity MR
Gearing ratio BERBELX

AEENERAERAERERREAEHE
FEREMEN UBRREEMF
mRBTFREHRSEN  #HRE
BANRE - BIBE NN R A%
EoRERER-

AEEEBRYEHEHIRERALER
R BRAKERENERNER
VARE{R 43 IR 75 2K & /B [0 4 -

WEAEEBEMS  ARAAEESR
REMBRRARAEINERR R

2021
2021 4

HK$’000

FETT

494 455
4,034 5,544
4,528 5,999
195,378 208,682

0.02 times £  0.03 times &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways to
access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk
exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category

Financial assets cREE
Amortised cost:

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

B 5 YRR

Financial liabilities cRmasE
Amortised cost:
Trade payables

Accruals, deposits and other payables

B % 3R

JFE S 7R
Bank borrowings |ITE K
Lease liabilities HEBaE

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

RE ARG ER

B A REKFIA
BeERREFED

WA R

AEEFENEBREEBRELRNHE
RERHEAEHMIAMEESRE
MRk BERREFEEERR -
RBELRR MEXEARBREQFE
R o

MHRREREAASELTHBAE
B BEBEENEIEEMAZES -
EERVHRRNEEBRFERET R
AEENFERRESRE BERAS
AP ESRBTIZREE -

AEBO BRI IR B &M iEE
REEEcRIA-EVEEBEoR
MEREEASEFBRARN A
YAARREFREIERES -

() ZERI TN EMEE
REEHME

EEHER RmE REM

2021

2021 £

HK$’000

F&TT

104,019 106,115
457 2,043
117,213 121,673
221,689 229,831
16,331 14,430
2,422 2,215
4,034 5,544
494 455
23,281 22,644



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$52,639,000 (2021:
two customers of HK$44,613,000) as at 31 March 2022.

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period to
ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition.

The Group applies provision matrix to measure the expected
credit losses based on collective assessment. The Group also
performs individual assessment for major customers with
material outstanding balances as at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the expected loss
rates applied in the provision matrix are determined with
reference to the debtors’ shared credit risk characteristics,
including background of the customers and their historical
payment behaviour, historical actual loss on the trade
receivables and information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the debtors
operate. Expected loss rates are determined with reference
to external credit ratings and benchmarking to similar risk
portfolio.

(b) FEREMR

AEENEERRIZERSARE
B REMBUKANERE K
RITHEBRAER - EEEECRE
—EFERR ZRFEERREZ
FEREEEE B RINRETT
B AU E A EET -

R2022F3A31H AEEHA
SR EERR MEEFHNE
2 FE W X IE A&52,639,0007% JT
(20214 : M & B F 44,613,000
BIT) e

REZEEREAMS  AEER
BERREFRFH2HMAHEE
B8 - DARELR B 1) 16 FE P8 A R 2
A )32 4 7T B 1 Bk R B BR T N
EH RABEREEEE -

AEBERABRBERTERL
RFFENOBEMESEER KRS
HX AKREHAEERNRENH
BHNEIEFEPETERFMG R
20224 K202143H31H - EMA
REBHEEENTEHRERXR LS
ZEBANKREERR SR
EREFPERREBENMNRT
R BIRBFENBEERE
B RER A Z 85 & A RE
AFTRZEBERBEZENNE
E-BHMEBERXRTIE2EZHUM
RAA RSN EERFRRELEM

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  31. 81 75 & B2 B 12 (@)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 58 =& k2 )
The following table provided information about the Group’s TRREEEERRESHEERAE
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at FiAEEERBNLE S ERFE
the end of the reporting period: ZEHEEEERE AR

As at 31 March 2022
7202263 A31H
Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

938 H
FEBEX IREAE EEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

Not yet past due 14 7 480 5 0.10% 41,621 40
Less than one month past due BHAOR—@A 0.10% 51,784 53
One to three months past due BAH—==@A 0.21% 5,710 12
More than three months past due 1 Hi =1 A LA - 0.95% 5,057 48

104,172 153

As at 31 March 2021
2021 FE3 A31H

Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
15 78 HA

FEEEEX RmEAE EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT TETT

Not yet past due %] 7 781 Hf 0.09% 43,447 39
Less than one month past due wE DR —1E A 0.08% 45,884 36
One to three months past due mE—=={@A 0.46% 7,755 36
More than three months past due 31 83 = & A A E 1.34% 9,264 124

106,350 235
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #ZE202293A31HILFE

(b) Credit risk (continued)

For deposits and other receivables, the Group has assessed
and concluded that the expected credit loss for these
receivables is insignificant based on the risk of default of
those counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus,
no loss allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2022 and
2021.

The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral

or other credit enhancement.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables is as follows:

(b) 1= E = B

RESREMEBRFERS @ &
REFEARRE  RNEBEETEH
Y BLERRBBIBREI12EATE
HiEEEEL BHEEBIEY
ZERRFELTFEE - Bt
R 20224 K 202143 31 B I £
mRBEEE -

ReRRITESRONEERR NI
BEAH AR T RAREER
SNEREENRL A RIFBEN
#RIT °

AEENERHEESBEEERTY
S H M EIREEITER -

B 5 i i 308 2 59 R
mF -

HK$’000

FH&T

Balance at 1 April 2020 M2020F 4 A1 8 2 &% 368
Reversal of impairment loss during the year, net 4 (R E B I8 & [O - JF 58 (133)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021FE3A31 H 2 4 235
Reversal of impairment loss during the year, net £ 5 (& & 18 B [0 - % 28 82)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022F 3831 H 2 &% 153
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  31. 81 5 [ B2 B 12 (@)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBELSREK
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able ENE & B B A K E S E R
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. REESRABEENEENA

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the

BEE ASEEREAGEEZES
REMENRBAREBRERTH
MRS ES R BHIFEAR
TREEEAHM-

AEBENBEREMEZEER
BEHEKRERRITRENER
B ARERA SR H 4 5558 2 1
ReRBIRIBEERRTES
RMEEESEANCITNRER
B AEMEEHEREEHN
MBEEFEL -

TRFFAEBERBERERS
HARNBTEOINRAEBR HE
RABRASRE(BREASE
A R Bl (fis 27 B ) 3R ) B e
EHEHRTHERFENHFER

B)EASEARAXNTNRR
BHE-

earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Total

contractual

Carrying undiscounted
amount amount
2i &
AR RIE
wE
HK$°000
FE T

Within
one year or
on demand

More
than
one year

R—FRAR
BER
HK$’000
FER

—F5k
HK$’000
Figx

AR E
HK$°000

FTER

At 31 March 2022 2022563 A31H

Trade payables B 5 I8 16,331 16,331 16,331 -

Accruals, deposits and  EETE A - i2e &
other payables H o B~ 3R B 2,422 2,422 2,422 —
Lease liabilities HEBE 494 510 423 87
Bank borrowings RITE X 4,034 4,120 4,120 -
23,281 23,383 23,296 87
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

(C) Liquidity risk (continued)

Carrying
amount
BREE
HK$’000
FET
At 31 March 2021 M2021E3H31H
Trade payables B 5 ENFE 14,430
Accruals, deposits and  JEEtE A - E4 &
other payables H th JE 5 5B 2,215
Lease liabilities HEARE 455
Bank borrowings IRITHE R 5,644
02 644

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements
which are summarised in the table below:

Total

contractual

Carrying undiscounted

amount amount

EEE)

AERFE

EEE BH

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEX FTHET

At 31 March 2022  7R2022%3H31H 4,034 4,174
At 31 March 2021 2021 F3A31 A 5,544 5,812

(c) REBE SRR @

Total
contractual Within More
undiscounted  one year or than
amount  on demand one year

A&

AREBBHIE R—FANK
ik mER  —FNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TET TET TAET
14,430 14,430 —
2,215 2,215 -
460 460 —
5,671 5,671 —
22,776 22,776 —

ZERIAEENFT BRI AR
RAEERR RITTAAWERIE
BERIAMER ARBDEER
A SRITEFBRE TR AL
i) & 3R W & P kAT &1 KB HR

8% -
More than More than
Less than one year two years
oneyearor butlessthan  butless than
on demand two years five years

—Fas  -FH0EE  WEHEE

ZEX PREF PREF
HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TRET TRET
1,624 1,624 926
1624 1,624 2,564
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

(d) Interest rate risk

(e)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate risk
exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The
Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
unduly exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at the end
of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming amounts of
these financial instruments outstanding at the end of the year
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower for
variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$17,000 (2021:
HK$23,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as the interest income from bank balances is
negligible.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIEZEREBERATF

(d) FI Rk

(e)

R B A R E R K B 2F 8 F
R BMRITERRIRITERK -
i 3R EOR TR Y B A R F
B AIMEEBRAEFERZSE
ERNZHNENEeR - AKE
MEBRREERHEERANEEL
MEREE ABERDREAHNX
BHHIEATESRAR  LHE
FEREEMOME-

THBREDTIHERFERNR
TERONEEBRETE - &2
DERRFREAAREENZT S
MTAZFARZFARKEER
MwE -AETEEEASAIZ
WA X Eb R EMAEERITRT
M RA EIF Sk T REE0EEE - 5
EREEHMEHLTAEAIEED
FIT1E RO RE AR

WIRITIERAZEAE )2 T
PR 5OME & 26 M H fb FT & & 2 1R
BAE AAEEFANKRTE
s F) #5038 h0 #917,0007% T
(20214 : 23,000/ 7T ) °

B R ER1T A SR A B E] RS T A
A2 5 AN BIRTT AR B
R DA e

AT EEBR

ARBEFRAR AKERHR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHEANAEYHEK:
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HESE RITE N
(note 20) (note 21)
(Bt 7£20) (B3E21)
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2020 M 2020F481H 1,776 7,431
Changes from financing cash flows: BRERESRES
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER — (1,887)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities & & & 4 & 285 14 2% (1,321) —
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites ~ & & & | & 8 5 < 5 (59) —
Total changes from financing cash flows MEReRELHEE (1,380) (1,887)
Other change: Hib &8
Interest expenses FEMAZ 59 -
At 31 March 2021 R20215 3831 H 455 5,544
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSTELH
Repayment of bank borrowings ERIBITER - (1,510)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities A& & E A& ¥ 5 & (770) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites 10 & & & | 2 3 9 1 & @7) —
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSREEZHLE (797) (1,510)
Other changes: Hun s -
New leases i E 809 —
Interest expenses A B 27 —
At 31 March 2022 A2022%3 831 H 494 4,034
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 202293 A31HILFE

2021
20214
Notes HK$’000
B 5E &L
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 = 34 - -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FE FRIE 150 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG B 56,979 83,154
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREEEY 7,054 6,382
64,183 89,681
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits and other payables JEET & « 124 R H
FET5RIR 122 50
122 50
Net current assets and net assets RBEEFHERFEE 64,061 89,631
EQUITY =
Share capital N 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves B 25 58,061 83,631
Total equity DB 64,061 89,631
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 EEZEEZE2R2022F6H20R #t /& K&
June 2022 and signed on its behalf by: RETIZEITHATKREREE
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REEN i
Director Director
E E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S ER 2R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243A31H L FE

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: BB ARFERBOT :
Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
HEfEY ERFTEER ALFARIANA
WEARER R [N BEHRE FTEEK
%
2021
20215
Directly held:
EEFF:
Winson Group Hong Kong Limited ~ BVI/ Us $1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
KIEEEERBR DA EERX 1E7T RERK
He/BE
Perma Growth Investment Limited ~ BVI/ Us §1 100 100 Dormant
Hong Kong
KEREBR AT EERL e I EE)
He/BE
Indirectly held:
BEEE
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provision of environmental hygiene

Company Limited and related services and airline
catering support services
KIEEZRBRH B R A A 0 6,000,000/ 7T RERIBA 4+ RABB RS A K
=B &R
Winson Professional Pest Control Hong Kong HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provision of pest management
Company Limited services
BEEERBERAT EiE 8,275,000 7T REZBEERY
Wealthy Strong Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
ERREARRAA B 6,652,026 % 7T MERE
None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities MEAATHEB AR RIS Rk ik
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods. SHRNFEREBESEA S ABERE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for {E8 B A AT IR KL E X G SV B R K
the five years ended 31 March 2022, as extracted from the audited H)ZN & E&H £2022€3A31B It hAEE
consolidated financial statements issued by the Company is set out HWHEULEENBEBREEHNWO T - 5H
below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial ZI FNEKKSEZABHREHN—Z 5D -

statements.

2021 2020 2019 2018
2021 £ 20204 20194 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FA&ETT FETT FETT F& T

Results &
Revenue g 473,685 529,987 569,559 537,324 508,106
Profit for the year FE R 22,096 73,809 20,702 20,842 21,804

Assets and liabilities EERERE

Total assets 264,233 276,464 207,652 191,686 186,099

&
pi
5 Mt

Total liabilities BERE 68,855 67,782 72,779 67,495 72,659
Total equity S 4EER 195,378 208,682 134,873 124,191 113,440
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